
 

 

 
 

 
 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

 

NAVNEET SHARDA, an individual; 

TRATA INC., a Nevada corporation, 

 

                                     Appellants, 

 

         v. 

 

 

STEVEN BARKET, an individual, et 

al. 

 

                                     Respondents. 

 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

Appeal No.: 82360  

 

 Nature of Proceedings: Appeal 

 

Court below: Eighth Judicial 

District Court of Nevada, Case No.: 

A-17-756274-C 
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   Daniel Marks, Esq. 

        Nevada Bar No. 2003 

        LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS 

        610 South Ninth Street 

        Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 

`       Telephone: (702) 386-0536 

        office@danielmarks.net 

Attorneys for SHAFIK HIRJI, 

SHAFIK BROWN and FURNITURE 

BOUTIQUE 

         

 

APPENDIX – ALPHABETICAL INDEX  

 

No.  Date Description Vol.# Page Nos 

5 8/11/2017 Answer and Counterclaim I 

JA000040-

JA000060 

6 8/31/2017 Answer to Sharda’s Counterclaim I 

JA000060-

JA000067 

7 9/5/2017 Answer to Amended Complaint I 

JA000068-

JA000088 

43 8/11/2017 Answer to Complaint and Counterclaim XI 

JA002211-

JA002219 

8 12/13/2017 Answer to Counterclaim I 

JA000089-

JA000098 

41 6/3/2021 Amended Certificate of Service  XI 

JA002191-

JA002205 

mailto:office@danielmarks.net
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25 12/14/2020 

Amended Notice of Entry of Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law for 

November 19, 2020 Order Dismissing 

Plaintiffs’ Matter with Prejudice VI 

JA001172-

JA001190 

4 8/11/2017 Amended Verified Complaint I 

JA000023-

JA000039 

10 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume I of VIII) I 

JA000134-

JA000238 

11 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume II of VIII) 

 

 

 

 

II 

JA000239-

JA000303 

12 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume III of VIII) 

 

 

 

II 

JA000304-

JA000415 

13 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume IV of VIII) III 

JA000416-

JA000530 

14 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume V of VIII) III 

JA000531-

JA000642 

15 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume VI of VIII) IV 

JA000643-

JA000747 

16 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume VII of VIII) IV 

JA000748-

JA000845 
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17 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume VIII of VIII) IV 

JA000846-

JA000875 

29 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. I of VIII) VII 

JA001331-

JA001436 

30 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. II of VIII) VII 

JA001437-

JA001502 

31 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. III of VIII) VIII 

JA001503-

JA001615 

32 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. IV of VIII) VIII 

JA001616-

JA001731 

33 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. V of VIII) IX 

JA001732-

JA001844 

34 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. VI of VIII) IX 

JA001845-

JA001950 

35 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. VII of VIII) X 

JA001951-

JA002049 

36 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. VIII of VIII) X 

JA002050-

JA002131 

19 9/3/2020 

Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff’s 

Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss V 

JA000904-

JA001083 

1 6/1/2017 Complaint I 

JA000001-

JA000016 

21 10/14/2020 Confession of Judgment (Shafik Brown) V 

JA001104-

JA001119 
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22 10/14/2020 Confession of Judgment (Shafik Hirji) VI 

JA001120-

JA001135 

23 10/14/2020 

Confession of Judgment (Shafik Brown 

and Shafik Hirji) VI 

JA001136-

JA001155 

26 12/28/2020 

Counterclaimants’ Motion for 

Clarification, and/or in the alternative, 

Motion for Relief, Reconsideration, 

and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment VI 

JA001191-

JA001296 

9 7/29/2020 

Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss with 

Prejudice and for Related Relief I 

JA000099-

JA000133 

20 10/13/2020 

Defendants’ Reply to Motion to Dismiss 

with Prejudice and for Related Relief V 

JA001084-

JA001103 

37 1/13/2021 

Defendants’ Opposition to Limited 

Joinder and Countermotion to Strike X 

JA002132-

JA002146 

28 1/11/2021 

Defendants’ Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification  VI 

JA001300-

JA001330 

24 12/14/2020 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 

Law for November 19, 2020 Order 

Dismissing Plaintiffs’ Matter with 

Prejudice VI 

JA001156-

JA001171 

27 1/7/2021 

Limited Joinder to Motion for 

Clarification VI 

JA001297-

JA001299 

38 1/13/2021 Notice of Appeal X 

JA002147-

JA002169 

42 6/23/2021 Notice of Appeal XI 

JA002206-

JA002210 

40 5/25/2021 Notice of Entry of April 6, 2021 Order X 

JA002179-

JA002190 
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39 5/25/2021 Order from April 6, 2021 Hearing X 

JA002170-

JA002178 

18 9/2/2020 

Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss V 

JA000876-

JA000903 

2 6/12/2017 Proof of Service – Shafik Brown I 

JA000017-

JA000019 

3 6/12/2017 Proof of Service – Shafik Hirji I 

JA000020-

JA000022 

 

 

 
 

APPENDIX – CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

 

 

No.  Date Description Vol.# Page Nos 

1 6/1/2017 Complaint I 

JA000001-

JA000016 

2 6/12/2017 Proof of Service – Shafik Brown I 

JA000017-

JA000019 

3 6/12/2017 Proof of Service – Shafik Hirji I 

JA000020-

JA000022 

4 8/11/2017 Amended Verified Complaint I 

JA000023-

JA000039 

5 8/11/2017 Answer and Counterclaim I 

JA000040-

JA000060 
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6 8/31/2017 Answer to Sharda’s Counterclaim I 

JA000060-

JA000067 

7 9/5/2017 Hirji Answer to Amended Complaint I 

JA000068-

JA000088 

8 12/13/2017 Barket’s Answer to Hirgi Counterclaim I 

JA000089-

JA000098 

9 7/29/2020 

Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss with 

Prejudice and for Related Relief I 

JA000099-

JA000133 

10 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume I of VIII) I 

JA000134-

JA000238 

11 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume II of VIII) 

 

 

 

 

II 

JA000239-

JA000303 

12 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume III of VIII) 

 

 

 

II 

JA000304-

JA000415 

13 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume IV of VIII) III 

JA000416-

JA000530 

14 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume V of VIII) III 

JA000531-

JA000642 

15 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume VI of VIII) IV 

JA000643-

JA000747 
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16 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume VII of VIII) IV 

JA000748-

JA000845 

17 7/29/2020 

Appendices for Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss Plaintiffs’ Complaint with 

Prejudice and Related Relief  

(Volume VIII of VIII) IV 

JA000846-

JA000875 

18 9/2/2020 

Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss V 

JA000876-

JA000903 

19 9/3/2020 

Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff’s 

Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to 

Dismiss V 

JA000904-

JA001083 

20 10/13/2020 

Defendants’ Reply to Motion to Dismiss 

with Prejudice and for Related Relief V 

JA001084-

JA001103 

21 10/14/2020 Confession of Judgment (Shafik Brown) V 

JA001104-

JA001119 

22 10/14/2020 Confession of Judgment (Shafik Hirji) VI 

JA001120-

JA001135 

23 10/14/2020 

Confession of Judgment (Shafik Brown 

and Shafik Hirji) VI 

JA001136-

JA001155 

24 12/14/2020 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 

Law for November 19, 2020 Order 

Dismissing Plaintiffs’ Matter with 

Prejudice VI 

JA001156-

JA001171 

25 12/14/2020 

Amended Notice of Entry of Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law for 

November 19, 2020 Order Dismissing 

Plaintiffs’ Matter with Prejudice VI 

JA001172-

JA001190 

26 12/28/2020 

Counterclaimants’ Motion for 

Clarification, and/or in the alternative, 

Motion for Relief, Reconsideration, VI 

JA001191-

JA001296 
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and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment 

27 1/7/2021 

Limited Joinder to Motion for 

Clarification VI 

JA001297-

JA001299 

28 1/11/2021 

Defendants’ Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification  VI 

JA001300-

JA001330 

29 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. I of VIII) VII 

JA001331-

JA001436 

30 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. II of VIII) VII 

JA001437-

JA001502 

31 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. III of VIII) VIII 

JA001503-

JA001615 

32 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. IV of VIII) VIII 

JA001616-

JA001731 

33 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. V of VIII) IX 

JA001732-

JA001844 

34 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. VI of VIII) IX 

JA001845-

JA001950 

35 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. VII of VIII) X 

JA001951-

JA002049 

36 1/11/2021 

Appendices to Opposition to Motion for 

Clarification (Vol. VIII of VIII) X 

JA002050-

JA002131 

37 1/13/2021 

Defendants’ Opposition to Limited 

Joinder and Countermotion to Strike X 

JA002132-

JA002146 
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38 1/13/2021 Notice of Appeal X 

JA002147-

JA002169 

39 5/25/2021 Order from April 6, 2021 Hearing X 

JA002170-

JA002178 

40 5/25/2021 Notice of Entry of April 6, 2021 Order X 

JA002179-

JA002190 

41 6/3/2021 Amended Certificate of Service  XI 

JA002191-

JA002205 

42 6/23/2021 Notice of Appeal XI 

JA002206-

JA002210 

43 8/11/2017 Answer to Complaint and Counterclaim XI 

JA002211-

JA002219 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the _30th___ day of July, 2021, I electronically filed the foregoing 

JOINT APPENDIX with the Clerk of Court for the Supreme Court of Nevada by 

using the Supreme Court of Nevada’s E-filing system. 

 I further certify that on the above reference date service was made to the following 

parties by the methods therein indicated. 

Michael R. Mushkin, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 2421 

MUSHKIN & COPPEDGE 

6070 Eastern Avenue, Suite 270 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 

Telephone:  (702) 454-333 

michael@mccnvlaw.com 

Attorneys for Respondents 

STEVEN BARKET and G65 VENTURES, LLC   

 

Daniel Marks, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 2003 

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS 

610 South Ninth Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 

Telephone: (702) 386-0536 

office@danielmarks.net 

Attorneys for SHAFIK HIRJI, SHAFIK BROWN  

and FURNITURE BOUTIQUE 

         

                       

__/s/ Andrew M. David______________________________________ 

An Employee of the  

CORY READE DOWS & SHAFER 

mailto:michael@mccnvlaw.com
mailto:office@danielmarks.net
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1 APPX 
LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS 

2 DANIEL MARKS, ESQ. 
Nevada State Bar No. 002003 

3 610 South Ninth Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 

4 (702) 386-0536; Fax (702) 386-6812
Attorney for Defendants, Shajik Hirji, 

5 Shajik Brown, and Furniture Boutique, LLC 

6 

7 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

8 STEVEN BARKET, an individual; and G65 
VENTURES, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 

9 Company, 

10 Plaintiffs, 

11 vs. 

12 SHAFIK HIRJI, an individual; SHAFIK 
BROWN, an individual; and NA VEET 

13 SHARDA, an individual; FURNITURE 
BOUTIQUE, LLC, a Nevada Limited 

14 Liability Company, and DOES I-X, inclusive 
and ROE CORPORA TIO NS XI through XX. 

15 

16 
Defendants. 

I 
--------------

17 NA VEET SHARDA, an individual; 
TRATA, INC., a Nevada Corporation; 

18 
Counterclaimants, 

19 
VS. 

20 
STEVEN BARKET, an individual, 

21 
Counterdefendant. 

22 
SHAFIK HIRJI, an individual; SHAFIK 

I 

23 BROWN, an individual; and FURNITURE 
BOUTIQUE, LLC, a Nevada Limited 

24 Liability Company; 

25 Counter-Claimants, 
vs. 

26 
STEVEN BARKET, an individual, 

27 
Counter-Defendant. 

28 I 

Case No.: 
Case No.: 
Dept. No.: 

A-17-756274-C
A-18-770121-C
IV

Date of Hearing:     
Time of Hearing: 

Appendices for Defendants' Motion 
to Dismiss Plaintiffs' Complaint with 
Prejudice and for Related Relief 

(Volume II of VIII) 

Case Number: A-17-756274-C

Electronically Filed
7/29/2020 4:32 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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EXHIBIT TITLEroEscRIPTION

VOLUME VIII

45.                      danielmarksexamined. com website

46.                      Declaration of Michael Ahders

DATEDthis2ELdayofJuly,2020.
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DOC NOS.
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FFICE OF DANIEL MARKS-_r----
EL MARKS, ESQ.

Nevada State Bar No. 002003
TELETHA ZUPAN, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 012660
610 South Ninth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendants

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I her.eby certify that I am an employee of the Law Office of Daniel Marks and that on the

July, 2020, pursuant to NRCP 5(b) and Administrative Order 14-2,  I electronically

transmitted a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing DEFENDANTS' MOTION T0

APPENDICES VOLUME H of VIII FOR DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO DISNISS

PLAINTIFFS' COMPLAINT WITH PREJUDICE AND FOR REljATED RELIEF by way

of Notice of Electronic Filing provided by the cout mandated E-file & Serve system to the

following:

:#:esgw:gTfae8v!;#P:sg:s;,Flo;ctste.1o4
Attorney for Plaintiffs

Harold P. Gewerter, Esq.
HAROLD P. GEWERTER, ESQ. LTD.
Attorney for Def;endants, Navneet Sharda and Trata, Inc.
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1 APPX 
LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS 

2 DANIEL MARKS, ESQ. 
Nevada State Bar No. 002003 

3 610 South Ninth Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 

4 (702) 386-0536; Fax (702) 386-6812
Attorney for Defendants, Shafik Hirji, 

5 Shafik Brown, and Furniture Boutique, LLC 

6 

7 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

8 STEVEN BARKET, an individual; and G65 
VENTURES, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 

9 Company, 

10 Plaintiffs, 

11 vs. 

12 SHAFIK HIRJI, an individual; SHAFIK 
BROWN, an individual; and NA VEET 

13 SHARDA, an individual; FURNITURE 
BOUTIQUE, LLC, a Nevada Limited 

14 Liability Company, and DOES I-X, inclusive 
and ROE CORPORATIONS XI through XX. 

Defendants. 
15 

16 _______________ ! 

17 NA VEET SHARDA, an individual; 
TRA TA, INC., a Nevada Corporation; 

18 
Counterclaimants, 

19 
vs. 

20 
STEVEN BARKET, an individual, 

21 
Counterdefendant. 

22 
SHAFIK HIRJI, an individual; SHAFIK 

I 

23 BROWN, an individual; and FURNITURE 
BOUTIQUE, LLC, a Nevada Limited 

24 Liability Company; 

25 Counter-Claimants, 
vs. 

26 
STEVEN BARKET, an individual, 

27 
Counter-Defendant. 

28 I 

Case No.: 
Case No.: 
Dept. No.: 

A-17-756274-C
A-18-770121-C
IV

Date of Hearing: 
Time of Hearing: 

Appendices for Defendants' Motion 
to Dismiss Plaintiffs' Complaint with 
Prejudice and for Related Relief 

(Volume III of VIII) 

Case Number: A-17-756274-C

Electronically Filed
7/29/2020 4:32 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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45.                      danielmarksexamined. com website

46,                     Declaration of Michael Ahders

DATEDthis3EdayofJuly,2020.
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628-646

647-649

TELETHA ZUPAN, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 012660
610 South Ninth Street

#ttso%eegy¥,foTe5:feang:itos|

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Law Office of Daniel Marks and that on the

day of July, 2020, pursuant to NRCP 5® and Administrative Order 14-2,  I electronically

transmitted a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO

APPENDICES VOLUME Ill of VIII FOR DEFENDANTS' MOTION T0 DISMISS

PLAINTIFFS' COMPLAINT WITH PREJUDICE AND FOR RELATED RELIEF by way

of Notice of Electronic Filing provided by the court mandated E-file & Serve system to the

following,
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OPPS 
THE BARNABI LAW FIRM, PLLC 
CHARLES (“CJ”) E. BARNABI JR., ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14477 
375 E. Warm Springs Road, Ste. 104 
Las Vegas, NV 89119 
Email: cj@barnabilaw.com  
Telephone:  (702) 475-8903 
Facsimile:  (702) 966-3718 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

    
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
GORDON SILVER, a Nevada professional 
corporation, 
 
            Plaintiff/Judgment Creditors, 
 
vs. 
 
NAVNEET N. SHARDA; 
 
            Defendant/Judgment Debtor. 

Case No.:  A-15-712697-C 
Dept. No.:  XVI 
 
 
 
Hearing Date: March 24, 2020 
Hearing Time: 9:00 AM 
 

 

 
PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO QUASH ORDER ALLOWING 

EXAMINATION OF JUDGMENT DEBTOR AND WRIT OF EXECUTION 
 

Judgment Creditors, by and through their counsel of record CJ Barnabi, Esq. of The 

Barnabi Law Firm, PLLC, file this Opposition to Judgment Debtors Motion to Quash Order 

Allowing for Judgment Debtor Examination and Writ of Execution (the “Motion”).  Judgment 

Debtor fails to inform this Court that pursuant to the Settlement Agreement1, which they have 

not provided to this Court, that it plainly states that only after Sharda complies with several other 

terms of the settlement only then would “Plaintiff provide a signed original satisfaction.”  As 

admitted in the Motion, “both Sharda and Barket had a disagreement concerning collateral terms 

of the Settlement Agreement (i.e. terms other than the payment of the Gordon Silver Default 

 
1 As the Settlement Agreement contains a confidentiality provision, this Motion will be served and e-filed 
separately, with certain portions being redacted in the e-filed version.  A courtesy copy of the document 
will be provided to the Court. 

Case Number: A-15-712697-C

Electronically Filed
2/12/2020 7:27 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Judgment).”  Motion, Declaration of Harold Gewerter, p. 3:23-26.2  However, there are no 

“collateral terms” and satisfaction of the judgment was conditioned on full compliance – not 

partial compliance.  Sharda is not afforded to “pick and choose” which conditions of the 

Settlement Agreement he fulfills to obtain a satisfaction – especially when he and his counsel 

have submitted a Declaration and filing claiming that the Settlement Agreement is void, and they 

now at least concede that the Settlement Agreement must have at least some binding effect.   

Mr. Gewerter claims on behalf of Sharda that the payment of $114,764.24 was the 

Default Judgment plus two years interest.  That cannot be as the Default Judgment for 

$59,242.52 and interest for two years at 12% would amount to $73,460.72.  As the two figures 

differ by approximately $40,000, this further undermines the claim that the Default Judgment 

was paid in full and the payment of $114,764.24 appears to be a further condition of the 

Settlement Agreement.3  This likewise undermines any claims of purported fraud on the Court, 

because the explanation provided fails to consider that the payment was independent of the 

Default Judgment but necessary to satisfy all the terms of the Settlement Agreement.  Therefore, 

Sharda would not be entitled to an offset.  For these reasons and the others stated herein, the 

 
2 As discussed herein this is the same Settlement Agreement which Mr. Gerwerter and Sharda represented 
to the Court in Case No. A-17-756274-C was void because Sharda was supposedly threatened with 
grievous bodily harm.  Yet in this matter now, Mr. Gewerter and Sharda act as if the Settlement 
Agreement is partially binding, and if Sharda supposedly complies with a portion of the Settlement 
Agreement, he is somehow released from his liability to fulfill all the conditions of the Settlement 
Agreement, because he complied with the “monetary portion.”  Yet several requirements of the 
Settlement Agreement involved money, including assignment of $1,500,000 in confessions of judgment 
and promissory notes (five in total), payment of attorney’s fees and costs for collection and attorney’s 
fees and costs for failing to adhere to the Settlement Agreement, etc.  It is partially for this reason that the 
Plaintiff’s Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and Motion to Amend Prior Judgment was filed on 
January 20, 2020, to resolve the spurious allegations that the Settlement Agreement is void based on 
threat of harm and to compel Sharda’s compliance and/or amend the judgment; which now seems a 
necessity since Sharda now claims that the Settlement Agreement is at least partially binding – but not 
completely binding.     

3 The undersigned also assumed and believed based on conversations with staff counsel for Mr. 
Gewerter’s office that the $114,764.24 was based on a calculation of the Default Judgment.  But based on 
the explanation of Mr. Gewerter, that assumption fails as there must be some other reasoning.  
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Motion must be denied.   

 This Opposition is based on the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and 

any arguments which this Court may entertain at the time of this hearing.       

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 
 

I. 
 

BRIEF STATEMENT OF FACTS 
 

A. Barket Obtains the Judgment and the Parties Execute a Settlement Agreement. 

 1. On September 8, 2015 Gordon Silver obtained a default judgment against 

Defendant Navneet N. Sharda in this matter (the “Judgment”), which was noticed to Sharda.  

Notice of Entry of Default Judgment, Exhibit 1. 

 2. Since that time, no satisfaction of judgment has been filed. 

 3. On April 6, 2017, the Judgment was assigned to Steve Barket.  Acknowledgment 

of Assignment of Judgment, Exhibit 2. 

 4. On May 11, 2017 Barket filed an Ex Parte Motion for Order Allowing 

Examination of Judgment Debtor.  Sharda failed to appear and an Order to Show Cause Hearing 

was scheduled.  Declaration of Michael D. Mazur, Esq., attached herein as Exhibit 3, ¶¶5-7.   

5. At the hearing on the Order to Show Cause, the Court ordered that Sharda should 

appear for the judgment debtor examination on July 29, 2017. 

 6. At the examination on July 29, 2017, Sharda admitted that he had undertaken 

significant efforts to divert assets so his creditors could not receive funds due from him.  Id. at 

¶8.    

 7. Due to the admissions of Sharda, the parties went off the record and discussed the 

settlement of Sharda’s judgment.  Sharda was represented by counsel during the signing of the 

settlement agreement, which was jointly prepared by Mr. Mazur and Sharda’s counsel, Bryan 
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Naddafi, Esq.  Settlement Agreement attached herein as Exhibit 4. 

 8. As explained by Mr. Mazur at the hearing in this case that followed, at no time 

did Sharda make any claims of signing the Settlement Agreement under duress, that he was 

threatened, or other claimed mistreatment.  Exhibit 3, ¶¶10-17. 

B. Sharda Claims that the Settlement Agreement is Void, and Refuses to Be Dismissed 
or Dismiss His Counterclaim in Case No. A-17-756274-C, Fails to Assign the All of 
the Confessions of Judgment/Promissory Notes, Fails to Pay Attorney’s Fees, etc. 

 
 9. On June 1, 2017 Plaintiff filed his Complaint in Case No. A-17-756274-C.  On 

August 11, 2017 Defendants Navneet Sharda and Trata, Inc. filed their Answer and 

Counterclaim against Steven Barket.  (Trata, Inc. filed its counterclaim even though it was not a 

party to the lawsuit and had not been named as a Defendant). 

 10. The filing of the Complaint was prior to the Settlement Agreement being executed 

and the Counterclaim filed by Sharda and Trata, Inc. was filed following the Settlement 

Agreement being executed on July 29, 2017.   

 11. Counsel for Barket on August 1, 2018 attempted to dismiss Sharda and Trata, Inc. 

from the case, which was mentioned in the Settlement Agreement. 

 12. On August 1, 2018 Barket’s counsel sent correspondence to Defendants’ counsel 

Bryan Naddafi, Esq., inquiring why they were still proceeding with the Case No. A-17-756274-

C, though the parties had agreed to dismiss their claims: 

 Please accept this correspondence as a demand that you stipulate to 
joint dismissal of all claims brought by our respective clients against each 
other. After speaking to my client, I learned that a settlement agreement was 
executed between the two of them and that you were present for the 
settlement, along with my client’s other attorney, Mike Mazur. I have 
attached a copy of the agreement to refresh your recollection.  
 

We have asked you previously why you continue to move ahead 
with this case in spite of our understanding that there is a settlement. The 
fact that you continue to proceed with your client’s case even though you 
knew of the settlement is a significant misrepresentation and it will be 
raised with the Court if we are required to file a Motion to Dismiss. 
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 Please discuss this with your client and provide us with a response 
by Friday, August 3, 2018. Otherwise we will proceed with the Motion to 
Dismiss and seek sanctions. We look forward to hearing from you. 

 
Exhibit 5, without enclosure.4  
 
 13. Counsel for Defendant, Sharda and Trata, Inc. claimed there may be issues with 

the settlement but inquired about documentation for dismissal: 

As far as the agreement goes, there was an agreement to dismiss Sharda 
from the lawsuit.  I have yet to receive any documentation from your firm to 
dismiss Dr. Sharda.  However, based on recent events, of which I do not 
know if you are aware, there may be problems and possible litigation based 
on the settlement agreement.  Specifically, it comes to an issue of payment 
for Mr. Mazur's services.  Rather than be difficult and filing a motion to 
dismiss this matter and cause more litigation, I have tried to keep the costs 
in litigating on this matter to a minimum.  Instead of threatening me with 
sanctions for misrepresentation, I suggest that we come to some sort of 
understanding regarding how this litigation interacts with the settlement 
agreement.  I am not opposed to a discussion between myself, you and Mr. 
Mazur on how we should proceed with performance on the Settlement 
Agreement. 

 
Email from Bryan Naddafi, Esq. to Brandon McDonald, Esq. dated August 3, 2018; Declaration 
of CJ Barnabi In Support of This Opposition (“Barnabi Declaration”), ¶2, attached herein. 
 
 14. In response Mr. Naddafi was told that a claim of unpaid attorney’s fees had no 

bearing on the agreement, and that the agreement was enforceable: 

As far as Dr. Sharda being dismissed from the case, if the parties agreed to 
the dismissal, [then] a stipulation to dismiss should be signed immediately.  
Whether there is an issue of performance with regard to Mr. Mazur's fees 
has no bearing on the agreement to dismiss.  Just like in any other 
agreement, the fact that a party disputes performance on the agreement, that 
dispute does not unwind the underlying agreement.  If Dr. Sharda is not 
willing to stipulate to being dismissed from the case than please advise. 

 
Email to Bryan Naddafi, Esq. from CJ Barnabi, Esq. dated August 4, 2018; Barnabi Declaration, 
¶2. 

 
4 The Settlement Agreement is not to be filed with the Court; however, a courtesy copy will be provided 
with the hard copy provided to Chambers.  The Settlement Agreement specifically states though the 
claims against Sharda would be dismissed as memorialized in Barket, G65 Ventures v. Sharda, et al., 
Case No. A-17-756274-C.  Id., p. 3:22-28.   
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 15. On August 6, 2018 Mr. Naddafi agreed to review a proposed stipulation to 

dismiss which was forwarded for review.  After receiving no response, Mr. Barnabi requested an 

update on August 10, 2018 to see if Sharda would sign the stipulation or if a motion to enforce 

the settlement agreement would be necessary.  Barnabi Declaration, ¶3. 

 16. On August 14, 2018 Mr. Naddafi informed counsel that the proposed stipulation 

to dismiss would not be signed because, “he [Dr. Sharda] does not agree to dismiss his 

counterclaims as they relate directly to a contract signed by the parties.”  Barnabi Declaration, 

¶4.  

 17. As the parties agreed that Sharda would be dismissed from this matter prior to the 

Counterclaim, in accordance with the Settlement Agreement, Sharda and Trata, Inc. have 

violated the Settlement Agreement.  Plaintiff is also entitled to an award of attorney’s fees and 

costs for having to enforce the Settlement pursuant to the terms therein which state that the 

prevailing party should be awarded the same. 

C. Mr. Gewerter and Sharda Claim that the Settlement Agreement is Void Based on 
Threats of Harm. 

 
 18. Over a year after the Settlement Agreement had been executed, Sharda claimed 

that the Settlement Agreement was void because he had been threatened with bodily harm, and 

concocted a wildly lavish story of injury if he did not sign the Settlement Agreement.  Barnabi 

Declaration, ¶5. 

 19. In Case No. A-17-756274-C, Plaintiffs in that case, Steven Barket and G65 

Ventures, LLC, also sought to enforce the terms of the Settlement Agreement and filed their 

similar Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement on October 10, 2018.  Barnabi Declaration, ¶6. 

 20. In Opposition to the Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement, Sharda and his 

counsel, Mr. Gewerter, claimed that the Settlement Agreement was void because it was signed 
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“by Sharda out of the belief that he was in imminent, life threatening, danger.”: 

During a break in a debtor-creditor exam relating to Case No. A-15-712697, Barket 
convinced Sharda that the Shafiks "were going to kill him," but that Barket would 
ensure Sharda's safety if he would enter into the subject Settlement Agreement. 
Barket informed Sharda that the Shafiks had killed people in the past and were not 
hesitant to do so in the future. This conversation took part privately between Barket 
and Sharda outside of the presence of their respective counsels. Moreover, the 
internet site Barket published against Sharda had already begun to affect Sharda's 
business as his cancer patients are constantly researching physicians on the internet. 
Thus, faced with the imminent loss of his practice as well as possible loss of his life, 
Sharda was in a no win situation and was forced to sign the Settlement Agreement 
despite the strong objections of his then-attorney, Bryan Nadaffi, Esq….. 
 
a) The Settlement Agreement is Void 

In the instant matter, the subject Settlement Agreement is void because it was signed 
by Sharda out of the belief that he was in imminent, life-threatening, danger. As 
noted herein, Sharda was convinced by Barket that the Shafiks "were going to kill 
him." Barket further stated to Sharda that he would ensure Sharda's safety only if 
Sharda would enter into the subject Settlement Agreement. Without divulging the 
terms of the Settlement Agreement, it can be said that the Agreement would 
substantially enrich Barket if it was signed by Sharda. In short, Sharda signed the 
Settlement Agreement under duress, and as such, said Agreement is not valid or 
enforceable….. 
 
26. That during a break in a debtor-creditor exam relating to Case No. A-15-712697, 
Barket convinced me that the Shafiks had killed people and were going to kill me but 
that Barket would ensure my safety if I would enter into the subject Settlement 
Agreement. 
 
27. That on July 29, 2017 I was pressured under extreme duress to sign the subject 
Settlement Agreement. 

  
Opposition to Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and for an Award of Attorney’s Fees and 
Costs, attached herein as Exhibit 6, p. 5:8-19; 6:14-22; Declaration of Navneet Sharda, ¶¶ 26-27; 
Barnabi Declaration, ¶7. 
 
 28. At the hearing on first Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement, Sharda claimed 

through his counsel, Mr. Gewerter, that the Settlement Agreement was void due to these claims of 

duress and Judge Thompson stated it would be Sharda’s burden to prove that the Settlement 

Agreement was void: 

Mr. Gewerter: ….we do have a major issue of fact here and that’s duress and it 
was brought during the time. The man was threatened with his life “sign this or 
else” and the, and his client made numerous comments to my client outside the 
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presence of others.  That’s an issue of fact that must be tried your Honor, we must 
have an evidentiary hearing… 
 
Judge Thompson: I’ve got to hold an evidentiary hearing. This isn’t something I 
want to do but I’m going to. 
 
Mr. Gewerter: And I want, I need to do some discovery beforehand. Let me do 
discovery. I I was (inaudible)… 
 
Judge Thompson: You don’t need discovery. 
 
Mr. Gewerter: Okay. 
 
Judge Thompson: We’ll just hold an evidentiary hearing. I had written a day when 
I have nothing else on the calendar on Friday February 15th 9 o’clock right here. 
 
Mr. Gewerter: That’ fine your Honor. 
 
Judge Thompson: You’ll be here? It’s your request, you have the burden. 
 
Mr. Gewerter: Right.5 
 

Informal Transcript of Hearing of January 17, 2019 Re: Motion to Enforce Settlement 
Agreement, pp. 4:14-5:3, attached herein as Exhibit 7; Barnabi Declaration, ¶8. 
 
 29. Also, in the same Opposition, Sharda claimed that, “Sharda (and only Sharda) has 

complied with all of its terms [the Settlement Agreement].  Id. at p. 5:21-22.  Barnabi Declaration, 

¶9.   

30. This contrasts with Sharda’s and his counsel’s position now that the Settlement 

Agreement is at least enforceable to the extent of the payment tendered, but fails to address that this 

was only one part of obtaining the satisfaction of judgment.  Barnabi Declaration, ¶10. 

 
5 This also contradicted Mr. Gewerter’s representations on February 4, 2020 to Discovery Commissioner 
Erin Truman that Judge Thompson had found that the Settlement Agreement was void or of no effect, 
when Judge Thompson actually determined that it was Sharda’s burden to prove that the Settlement 
Agreement was unenforceable.  (That transcript is in the process of being ordered and will be 
supplemented at a later date.)  Mr. Gewerter also stated at the same hearing that Plaintiff’s had not filed a 
Motion to Enforce the Settlement Agreement that was going to be heard on February 25, 2020, after the 
undersigned had represented to the Court that it would be proper to determine whether the Settlement 
Agreement negated Sharda and Trata, Inc.  But thereafter Mr. Gewerter filed an opposition on behalf of 
Sharda the day after the February 4, 2020, which opposition was 17 days late.  
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D. Mr. Gewerter’s Yells, Insults and Berates Mr. Barnabi in Attempt to Release 
Sharda From the Judgment Debtor Examination.  

 
 31. On January 23, 2020 after receiving the initial correspondence from Mr. 

Gerwerter the undersigned called Mr. Gewerter approximately 30-45 minutes afterwards.  After 

being placed on hold, the conversation was initiated by Mr. Gerwerter yelling, “ARE YOU 

PLAYING GAMES WITH ME!”  Barnabi Declaration, ¶11. 

 32. Any attempt to explain the position of Plaintiffs that lasted more than a few 

seconds, received the response of either, “Shut up”, “you need to let me talk”, “don’t you 

understand English?” or other similar commentary.  After expressing that counsel was not going 

to tolerate such unprofessional conduct, multiple times, the mostly one-sided conversation was 

terminated.  Barnabi Declaration, ¶12. 

 33. During the conversation at each juncture when the undersigned inquired whether 

they could partially satisfy the Settlement Agreement and act as if they had a satisfaction of 

Judgment or whether they now believed that the Settlement Agreement was enforceable, no 

response was received except to further berate the undersigned.  Barnabi Declaration, ¶13. 

 34. Following the conversation and letters of January 23, 2020, the judgment debtor 

examination was continued, which was memorialized in correspondence January 29, 2020.  

Exhibit 8.  No response was received from Mr. Gewerter addressing any of the points raised, nor 

did Mr. Gewerter explain how Sharda fulfilled all the terms of the Settlement Agreement when 

he only provided the limited information attached to the January 23, 2020 letters.  The only 

attachments to the first letter was payment information and two assignments, and nothing else. 

Barnabi Declaration, ¶14. 

 35. On February 6, 2020 counsel for Plaintiffs was also contacted by the Sheriff’s 

Office to determine whether Sharda’s writ of execution should be fulfilled by auctioning off his 

Counterclaim in Case No. A-17-756274-C.  It was requested that the matter be stayed because 
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the Motion to Quash had been filed, and counsel was aware that it is the Sherriff’s policy to stay 

sales of assets once a motion has been filed with the Court seeking relief.  Barnabi Declaration, 

¶15.    

II. 
 

LEGAL ARGUMENT 
 

A. Sharda’s Motion Fails to Accept That He is Only Entitled to a Satisfaction of 
Judgment Once ALL the terms of the Settlement Agreement Are Fulfilled. 

 
 In this latest attempt to interpret the Settlement Agreement, Sharda this time instead of 

acting as if the Settlement Agreement is not enforceable, and claiming that the Settlement 

Agreement is void, now claims it is enforceable to the extent that the money was tendered to pay 

the judgment – which ignores that satisfaction was premised on entire completion of all the terms 

of the Settlement Agreement.  Sharda does not argue that he tendered the five confessions of 

judgment, promissory notes and other documents amounting to approximately $1.5 million 

dollars, paying fees and costs of collection, obtain certain acknowledgments from a third-party, 

dismissal of claims from Case No. A-17-756274-C, etc.  See Exhibit 4, pp. 1:25-4:21.  Because 

Sharda has failed to fulfill all of these terms, contrary to his prior representations, the judgment 

has not been satisfied because the terms of the Settlement Agreement have not been fulfilled.6  

Sharda’s attempt to parse the Settlement Agreement’s obligations fail as the language of the 

same states that all conditions have to be fulfilled.  These same conditions which Sharda and his 

counsel previously represented were void because the Settlement Agreement is purportedly the 

product of fraud and duress.  

 The figures for the Default Judgment and the Settlement Agreement amount are not the 

same and Mr. Gewerter’s hearsay explanation that the difference amounts to two years of interest 
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is either mistaken or he failed to calculate what two years interest upon $59,242.52 would be.  

Declaration of Harold Gewerter, ¶6.  Based on that explanation the accrued interest per year 

would be $7,109.10 (non-compounded the first and second year) ($59,242.52 [Default Judgment 

total] x .12 = $7,109.10; $59,242.52 + $7,109.10 + $7,109.10 = $73,460.72).  Even if the interest 

were compounded quarterly, the amount would not reach $114,764.24.  Therefore, it appears that 

the payment in that amount was not related to the default judgment of September 8, 2015 

because the calculations are extremely different than the second-hand explanation provided by 

Mr. Gewerter.  Nor is there any evidence presented to definitively assert that the payment was to 

be applied to the Default Judgment.  Also, Sharda has provided no explanation for this payment 

amount, who is the party that actually signed the Settlement Agreement.  Therefore, there is no 

reason to believe that the Default Judgment was satisfied.     

 At best, and assuming that the $114,764.24 is related to the Default Judgment amount,  

Sharda may be entitled to an offset but considering the lack of compliance and the attorney’s fees 

owed, even the offset of $114,764.24 would not eliminate the value of the other failures to 

comply.  But Sharda does not argue for an offset, he argues that, “no money is owed by 

Sharda…”  Motion, p. 8:4.  That statement is patently false as Sharda agrees that the Settlement 

Agreement was executed by him in the Motion (Declaration of Harold Gewerter, Esq., ¶ 6); and 

further states that, “Said Agreement also settled other matters in dispute between Barket and 

Sharda.” Id. If the Settlement Agreement “also settled other matters” then the Settlement 

Agreement is enforceable and is an admission that further contradicts that this same Settlement 

Agreement is void.  Sharda’s explanation to avoid the implication of a lawfully obtained 

judgment and related collection efforts, fail to address the lack of compliance to the Settlement 

Agreement which would entitle him to a satisfaction of judgment.  This latest explanation also 

highlights that while acknowledging that the Settlement Agreement is at least partially 
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enforceable, that Sharda and his counsel will not candidly admit that all the terms are 

enforceable.  Furthermore, as mentioned above, based on Mr. Gewerter’s explanation the two 

figures representing the payment and the default judgment amount to a difference of $40,000, 

which tarnishes Mr. Gewerter’s hearsay explanation. 

B. Sharda Fails to Cite Any Relevant Case Law to “Quash” the Order for Judgment 
Debtor Examination. 

 
 Sharda compares the Order for Judgment Debtor Examination to a subpoena issued 

pursuant to NRCP 45.  The fact that an order for a judgment debtor examination issued pursuant 

to NRS 21.270 is a not a subpoena issued under NRCP 45, is self-explanatory.  Any citation to 

case law regarding NRCP 45 likewise fails.  If Sharda attempts to argue on Reply that NRCP 

60(b) controls, which it likely does, his own failure to bring the matter to bare on the initial filing 

would bar that argument.  Exhibit 7, Informal Transcript, p. 4:9-13.  (Mr. Gewerter stating that 

issues not raised in the initial motion should not be raised in the reply).  As the judgment has not 

been satisfied pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, and will likely increase to 

account for all the further amounts due, the judgment owed by Sharda still exists.  Further, as 

Sharda cannot cite any proper law addressing the judgment debtor examination let alone 

establish satisfaction, the argument that the order granting the judgment debtor examination fails.      

 Sharda’s argument also assumes without support that a “judgment creditor” under NRS 

21.270 is only a person or entity that owes a monetary award.  Even assuming arguendo, the 

false allegations of Sharda, there is nothing in NRS 21.270 -.340 that state that an examination 

cannot be conducted for a non-monetary based judgment.  Thus, for example in this case, Sharda 

has failed to provide evidence that he transferred and conveyed all five confessions of judgment 

(and the supporting documents); agreed to be dismissed in Case No. A-17-756274-C, etc.  

Though these failures collaterally revolve around monetary considerations, they still form the 
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basis for Sharda not having a satisfaction of judgment.7  Sharda’s assumption is further 

undermined by his own Motion, which cites to NRS 21.020 which states that the writ must have 

certain information “and if it is for money, the amount.”  Id., Motion, p. 7:7.8  The statute itself 

allows for judgments to be entered which are not for money.  Thus, even assuming Sharda owed 

nothing, which is not the case, the judgment debtor exam could still proceed because the terms of 

the Settlement Agreement have not been fulfilled which condition the satisfaction of judgment.9     

C. Sharda’s Argument that the Writ Should Be Quashed as Well, Also Fails to 
Acknowledge the Settlement Agreement, Provide Any Substantive Law to Address 
the Issue and as Described in the Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and 
Amend Prior Judgment, Barket is Owed Much More Than Paid by Sharda.  

 
 Again, Sharda fails to consider the repercussions of his own failure to abide by the 

Settlement Agreement, nor does Mr. Gewerter’s hearsay testimony about the basis for the 

amount paid count as actual evidence which this Court may consider.  “Hearsay is inadmissible 

except as provided in this chapter, title 14 of NRS and the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure.”  

NRS 51.065.  Admittedly, Mr. Gewerter was not at the judgment debtor examination on July 29, 

2017 with Sharda as Mr. Naddafi was Sharda’s counsel – Mr. Gewerter’s testimony about the 

Settlement Agreement and the payment is impermissible hearsay.  See Id.  Sharda also does not 

provide for his own benefit a corroborating declaration which supports any of the hearsay 

statements of Mr. Gewerter regarding the formation of the Settlement Agreement.  Thus, his 

 
7 Interestingly, Sharda does not argue he is entitled to a satisfaction of judgment as described in the 
Settlement Agreement.  Likely because to acknowledge or make the demand, it would have to be 
considered whether Sharda actually fulfilled the terms of the Settlement Agreement, which candid 
acceptance Sharda of the shortfall has been refused. 

8 The Motion also argues that the judgment has to be attached according to NRS 21.020 (Motion, p. 7:15-
17).  But the statute makes no such demand, and it is more likely that if it was necessary the Clerk of the 
Court would have rejected the writ rather than execute the same.   

9 Sharda’s argument basically uses the payment agreed upon in the Settlement Agreement to supposedly 
satisfy the Default Judgment.  But such argument admits that the terms of the Settlement Agreement 
condition the satisfaction of the judgment, based on the terms therein.   
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declaration concerning the formation of the Settlement Agreement is barred, except to the extent 

that the document speaks for itself.   

NRS 21.020 also provides no relief for Sharda as the writ complies with the statute.  The 

Settlement Agreement states that there is no satisfaction until all the terms are fulfilled, which 

terms have not been fulfilled.  However, if there is an adjustment to be made to the judgment, 

which should be favorable to Judgment Creditor, it will be addressed by this Court at hearing on 

the Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and Amend Judgment. 

D. Sharda and His Counsel Should Be Estopped from Changing Their “Story” 
Claiming that the Settlement Agreement is Void and Now Using it As a Basis to 
Claim That There is No Judgment in Favor of Judgment Creditor. 

 
 Sharda and his counsel have now changed their stance on the Settlement Agreement 

being void, and now use the required payment as a basis to claim there is no Default Judgment – 

without admitting that they have not done what is necessary to obtain a satisfaction of judgment.  

“Equitable estoppel functions to prevent the assertion of legal rights that in equity and good 

conscience should not be available due to a party's conduct. United Brotherhood v. Dahnke, 102 

Nev. 20, 714 P.2d 177 (1986)”  Topaz Mut. Co. v. Marsh, 108 Nev. 845, 853, 839 P.2d 606, 611 

(1992).  “The most elementary conceptions of justice and public policy require that the 

wrongdoer shall bear the risk of the uncertainty which his own wrong has created.” Bigelow v. 

RKO Radio Pictures, 327 U.S. 251, 265, 66 S.Ct. 574, 580, 90 L.Ed. 652 (1946). Equitable 

estoppel is applied to prevent manifest injustice and hardship to an injured party as which has 

relied on the representations to their detriment.  Topaz Mut. Co., 108 Nev. at 853.     

Sharda’s use of the Settlement Agreement which he admittedly asserted was void, and for 

which they gained the benefit of preventing Plaintiffs’ enforcement should be estopped.  As 

Sharda claimed that the Settlement Agreement is void, he does not know get to argue that the 

Settlement Agreement supports his claim that the judgment has been satisfied.  See Topaz Mut. 
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Co., 108 Nev. at 853.  Therefore, Sharda cannot argue against his own prior position that the 

Settlement Agreement is void, obtain the benefit of restraining enforcement and then change his 

position to only acknowledge the Settlement Agreement to the extent it serves his Motion.  

Sharda as the wrong-doer should bear the risk of the wrong he wantonly created, while acting as 

if the Settlement Agreement was enforceable, then claiming it is void and now claiming it may 

be partially enforceable.  See Bigelow, 327 U.S. at 265.        

E. Sanctions Should Not Issue When Sharda Continues to Claim that the Settlement 
Agreement is Void, and Now Partially Enforceable in His Own Self-Serving Favor 
or Fails to Acknowledge That He is Not Entitled to a Satisfaction of Judgment. 

 
 Admittedly Sharda has not done all that is required under the Settlement Agreement to 

obtain a satisfaction of judgment, and admittedly believes that the Settlement Agreement is void; 

but now again has changed his story.  Again, Sharda provide no legal basis for sanctions, “in the 

form of attorney’s fees and costs and all other relief to which he is entitled.”  Motion, p. 8:8.  

“Nevada adheres to the American Rule that attorney fees may only be awarded when authorized 

by statute, rule, or agreement.”  Pardee Homes of Nevada v. Wolfram, 135 Nev. 173, 177, 444 

P.3d 423, 426 (2019).  In this case there is no statute, rule or agreement that Sharda has stated to 

support a deviation from the American Rule and the request must be denied.  See Id.  Nor has 

Mr. Gewerter complied with the prerequisites of NRCP 11 in providing a draft of the motion 

seeking sanctions prior to filing the Motion.  See Id.  Furthermore, Judgment Creditor also filed 

the Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and Amend Judgment to address the issue of the 

precise amounts owed.  As there is no reasonable basis to award attorneys’ fees and cost as 

sanctions, nor has Sharda provided any case law in support, sanctions cannot be awarded.  

F. The Motion is Moot and No Relief Should Be Ordered. 

 As discussed above, and in the correspondence of January 29, 2020, the Judgment Debtor 

Examination has been continued to a later date, likely following the Motion to Enforce 
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Settlement Agreement and Amend Prior Judgment hearing on February 25, 2020; and the Writ 

has also been stayed, pending resolution of this Motion.  “The question of mootness is one of 

justiciability.” Personhood Nev. v. Bristol, 126 Nev. 599, 602, 245 P.3d 572, 574 (2010). “This 

court's duty is not to render advisory opinions but, rather, to resolve actual controversies by an 

enforceable judgment.” Id. Accordingly, “a controversy must be present through all stages of the 

proceeding, and even though a case may present a live controversy at its beginning, subsequent 

events may render the case moot.” Id. (citations omitted).  In this matter there is no controversy 

because there is no scheduled judgment debtor examination and the writ has been stayed.  Any 

other issues will be resolved by the Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and Amend Prior 

Judgment.    

/// 

/// 
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III. 

CONCLUSION 

 Based on the foregoing, the Motion to Quash should be denied in its entirety.  Sharda is 

not entitled to a satisfaction of judgment because he fails to abide by the terms of the Settlement 

Agreement, which he acknowledges as being at least partially binding.  This latest argument of 

the Settlement Agreement is also contrary to the principles of estoppel as Sharda’s interpretation 

of the Settlement Agreement serves the purpose which is required at the time to avoid adverse 

action.  Nor should sanctions issue because there is no basis in fact or law that Judgment Creditor 

is not entitled to the judgment against Sharda, and any issues regarding payments made will be 

addressed through the previously filed Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and Amend 

Judgment.  Additionally, any relief sought is essentially moot as the judgment debtor 

examination has been continued and the writ stayed.   

Dated this 20th day of January 2020. 

      THE BARNABI LAW FIRM, PLLC 
 

    By: _/s/ CJ Barnabi_________________   
Charles E. (“CJ”) Barnabi Jr. 
Nevada Bar No.: 14477 
375 E. Warm Springs Road, Ste. 104 
Las Vegas, NV 89119 
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that on the 12th day of February 2020, I served a copy of the foregoing 

upon each of the parties via Odyssey E-Filing System pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) and EDCR 

8.05, which have complied with said rules in providing their requested emails addresses for 

electronic service: 

Navneet N Sharda: 
Harold Gewerter (harold@gewerterlaw.com) 
 
Other Service Contacts not associated with a party on the case: 
Robyn Campbell . (rcampbell@gordonsilver.com) 
Bryan Naddafi Esq. (bryan@olympialawpc.com) 
Charles ("CJ") Barnabi Jr. (cj@barnabilaw.com) 
Marie Twist (marie@barnabilaw.com) 
 
 Dated this 20th day of January 2020. 

 
______________/s/ CJ Barnabi_____________ 
An employee of The Barnabi Law Firm, PLLC 
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DECLARATION OF CJ BARNABI, ESQ. 

 CJ Barnabi, Esq., under penalties of perjury, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:    

1. That he is counsel for the Plaintiff in the above-entitled action; and that this 

Declaration is submitted in support of the foregoing Opposition. 

2. That he has read the foregoing Opposition and knows the facts as described; 

that the same are true of his own knowledge except for those matters which are based on 

information provided by other related parties and that the email portions and Exhibit 5 

attached hereto, are true and correct copies of those documents as represented. 

3. That on August 6, 2018 Mr. Naddafi agreed to review a proposed stipulation 

to dismiss, then shortly after Mr. Naddafi simply ignored any attempt to obtain an update. 

4. That the conversation with Mr. Naddafi took place on August 14, 2018 as 

described in ¶16 in the Opposition and is based upon Mr. Barnabi’s own knowledge. 

5. That over a year after the Settlement Agreement was executed Sharda claimed 

that the Settlement Agreement was void because he had been threatened with bodily harm. 

6. In Case No. A-17-756274-C, Plaintiffs in that case, Steven Barket and G65 

Ventures, LLC, also sought to enforce the terms of the Settlement Agreement and filed their 

similar Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement on October 10, 2018.   

7. In Opposition to the Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement, Sharda and his 

counsel, Mr. Gewerter, claimed that the Settlement Agreement was void because it was signed 

“by Sharda out of the belief that he was in imminent, life threatening, danger.”: 

During a break in a debtor-creditor exam relating to Case No. A-15-712697, Barket 
convinced Sharda that the Shafiks "were going to kill him," but that Barket would 
ensure Sharda's safety if he would enter into the subject Settlement Agreement. 
Barket informed Sharda that the Shafiks had killed people in the past and were not 
hesitant to do so in the future. This conversation took part privately between Barket 
and Sharda outside of the presence of their respective counsels. Moreover, the 
internet site Barket published against Sharda had already begun to affect Sharda's 
business as his cancer patients are constantly researching physicians on the internet. 
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Thus, faced with the imminent loss of his practice as well as possible loss of his life, 
Sharda was in a no win situation and was forced to sign the Settlement Agreement 
despite the strong objections of his then-attorney, Bryan Nadaffi, Esq….. 
 
a) The Settlement Agreement is Void 

In the instant matter, the subject Settlement Agreement is void because it was signed 
by Sharda out of the belief that he was in imminent, life-threatening, danger. As 
noted herein, Sharda was convinced by Barket that the Shafiks "were going to kill 
him." Barket further stated to Sharda that he would ensure Sharda's safety only if 
Sharda would enter into the subject Settlement Agreement. Without divulging the 
terms of the Settlement Agreement, it can be said that the Agreement would 
substantially enrich Barket if it was signed by Sharda. In short, Sharda signed the 
Settlement Agreement under duress, and as such, said Agreement is not valid or 
enforceable….. 
 
26. That during a break in a debtor-creditor exam relating to Case No. A-15-712697, 
Barket convinced me that the Shafiks had killed people and were going to kill me but 
that Barket would ensure my safety if I would enter into the subject Settlement 
Agreement. 
 
27. That on July 29, 2017 I was pressured under extreme duress to sign the subject 
Settlement Agreement. 

  
Opposition to Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement and for an Award of Attorney’s Fees and 
Costs, attached herein as Exhibit 6, p. 5:8-19; 6:14-22; Declaration of Navneet Sharda, ¶¶ 26-27;  
 
 8. At the hearing on first Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement, Sharda claimed 

through his counsel, Mr. Gewerter, that the Settlement Agreement was void due to these claims of 

duress and Judge Thompson stated it would be Sharda’s burden to prove that the Settlement 

Agreement was void: 

Mr. Gewerter: ….we do have a major issue of fact here and that’s duress and it 
was brought during the time. The man was threatened with his life “sign this or 
else” and the, and his client made numerous comments to my client outside the 
presence of others.  That’s an issue of fact that must be tried your Honor, we must 
have an evidentiary hearing… 
 
Judge Thompson: I’ve got to hold an evidentiary hearing. This isn’t something I 
want to do but I’m going to. 
 
Mr. Gewerter: And I want, I need to do some discovery beforehand. Let me do 
discovery. I I was (inaudible)… 
 
Judge Thompson: You don’t need discovery. 
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Mr. Gewerter: Okay. 
 
Judge Thompson: We’ll just hold an evidentiary hearing. I had written a day when 
I have nothing else on the calendar on Friday February 15th 9 o’clock right here. 
 
Mr. Gewerter: That’ fine your Honor. 
 
Judge Thompson: You’ll be here? It’s your request, you have the burden. 
 
Mr. Gewerter: Right.10 
 

Informal Transcript of Hearing of January 17, 2019 Re: Motion to Enforce Settlement 
Agreement, pp. 4:14-5:3, attached herein as Exhibit 7. 
 
 9. Also, in the same Opposition, Sharda claimed that, “Sharda (and only Sharda) has 

complied with all of its terms [the Settlement Agreement].  Id. at p. 5:21-22.  

10. This contrasts with Sharda’s and his counsel’s position now that the Settlement 

Agreement is at least enforceable to the extent of the payment tendered, but fails to address that this 

was only one part of obtaining the satisfaction of judgment.   

 11. On January 23, 2020 after receiving the initial correspondence from Mr. 

Gerwerter the undersigned called Mr. Gewerter approximately 30-45 minutes afterwards.  After 

being placed on hold, the conversation was initiated by Mr. Gerwerter yelling, “ARE YOU 

PLAYING GAMES WITH ME!”   

 12. Any attempt to explain the position of Plaintiffs that lasted more than a few 

seconds, received the response of either, “Shut up”, “you need to let me talk”, “don’t you 

understand English?” or other similar commentary.  After expressing that I was not going to 

 
10 This also contradicted Mr. Gewerter’s representations on February 4, 2020 to Discovery Commissioner 
Erin Truman that Judge Thompson had found that the Settlement Agreement was void or of no effect, 
when Judge Thompson actually determined that it was Sharda’s burden to prove that the Settlement 
Agreement was unenforceable.  (That transcript is in the process of being ordered and will be 
supplemented at a later date.)  Mr. Gewerter also stated at the same hearing that Plaintiff’s had not filed a 
Motion to Enforce the Settlement Agreement that was going to be heard on February 25, 2020, after the 
undersigned had represented to the Court that it would be proper to determine whether the Settlement 
Agreement negated Sharda and Trata, Inc.  But thereafter Mr. Gewerter filed an opposition on behalf of 
Sharda the day after the February 4, 2020, which opposition was 17 days late.  
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tolerate such unprofessional conduct, multiple times, the mostly one-sided conversation was 

terminated.   

 13. During the conversation at each juncture when the undersigned inquired whether 

they could partially satisfy the Settlement Agreement and act as if they had a satisfaction of 

judgment or whether they now believed that the Settlement Agreement was enforceable, no 

response was received except to lodge further insults.   

 14. Following the conversation and letters of January 23, 2020, the judgment debtor 

examination was continued, which was memorialized in correspondence January 29, 2020.  

Exhibit 8.  No response was received from Mr. Gewerter addressing any of the points raised, nor 

did Mr. Gewerter explain how Sharda fulfilled all the terms of the Settlement Agreement when 

he only provided the limited information attached to the January 23, 2020 letters.  The only 

attachments to the first letter was payment information and two assignments, and nothing else. 

 15. On February 6, 2020 I was contacted by the Sheriff’s Office to determine whether 

Sharda’s writ of execution should be fulfilled by auctioning off his Counterclaim in Case No. A-

17-756274-C.  It was requested that the matter be stayed because the Motion to Quash had been 

filed, and counsel was aware that it is the Sherriff’s policy to stay sales of assets once a motion 

has been filed with the Court seeking relief. 

Declarant makes these statements under penalty of perjury and believes them to be true 

and correct to the best of her knowledge. 

DATED this 12th day of February 2020. 

 
 

________/s/ CJ Barnabi_________ 
CJ Barnabi, Esq. 
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EXHIBIT 1 

EXHIBIT 1 
Notice of Entry of Default Judgment 
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EXHIBIT 2 

EXHIBIT 2 
Acknowledgment of Assignment of Judgment
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EXHIBIT 3 

EXHIBIT 3 
  Declaration of Michael D. Mazur, Esq. 
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DECL 
MCDONALD LAW OFFICES 
BRANDON B. MCDONALD, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 011206 
CHARLES ("Cr) E. BARNABI JR. ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14477 
2451 W Horizon Ridge Pkwy, #120 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 992-0569 
Facsimile: (702) 992-0569 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendant 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

STEVEN BARKET, an individual; and G65 
VENTURES, LLC., a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company. 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

SHAFIK HIRJI, an individual; SHAFIK BROWN, 
an individual; and NAVNEET SHARDA, an 
individual; FURNITURE BOUTIQUE, LLC., A 
Nevada Limited Liability Company, and DOES I-
X, inclusive and ROE CORPORATIONS XI 
through XX, 

Defendants. 

SHAFIK HIRJI, an individual; SHAFIK BROWN, 
an individual; NAVNEET SHARDA, an individual; 
FURNITURE BOUTIQUE, LLC, a Nevada 
Limited Liability Company; TRATA, INC. a 
Nevada Limited Liability Company, 

Counterclaimants, 

vs. 

STEVEN BARKET, an individual, 

Counter-defendant. 

Case No.: A-17-756274-C 
Dept. No.: XVIII 
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STATE OF NEVADA 

COUNTY OF CLARK 

DECLARATION OF MICHAEL D. MAZUR, ESQ. IN SUPPORT OF 

I, Michael D. Mazur, Esq., hereby declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the 

State of Nevada that, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, the following facts are 

true and accurate. 

1. I am the attorney of record for Steven Barket, the Assignee and Judgment Creditor 

in the case Eighth Judicial District Court of Clark County Nevada entitled Gordon Silver v. 

Navneet N Sharda, Case Number A-15-712697-C (the "Gordon Silver Lawsuit"). 

2. On January 21, 2005, Gordon Silver, by and through their attorneys of record, filed 

the Gordon Silver Lawsuit complaint against Defendant Navneet N. Sharda for his failure to pay 

for legal services rendered. 

3. On September 8, 2015, Plaintiff received a Default Judgment against the 

Defendant Sharda, in the principal sum of $57,396.67, plus $1,464.50 for attorneys' fees and 

$381.35 in costs (the "Judgment"). Additionally, the Judgment accrued interest at the annual 

contract rate of 12% per annum in the amount of $14,014.23. 

4. On April 6, 2017, Plaintiff assigned all rights, title and interest in the Judgment to 

Stephen Barket (the "Assignee" and/or "Judgment Creditor"). On April 6, 2017, an 

Acknowledgement of Assignment of Judgment was filed. 

5. On June 2, 2017, Judgment Creditor executed upon the Defendant Sharda's assets 

via a Writ of Execution / Attachment and Defendant Shardda was served at Defendant's 

residential address. Defendant's counsel, Bryan Naddafi, Esq. contacted Mr. Mazur, Esq. via 

telephone to discuss the seizure. 

FAILURE TO APPEAR AT THE JUDGMENT DEBTOR'S EXAMINATION 

6. On May 11, 2017, the Judgment Creditor filed an Ex Parte Motion for Order 

Allowing Examination of Judgment Debtor. The Order allowing Examination of Debtor was 

personally served upon Defendant on June 15, 2017 by Gerald R. Fitsimmons, a licensed process 

server (License No. R-003971) employed by Clark County Process Service LLC (State License 

No 2031C). On June 14, 2017, Defendant, Navneet N. Sharda was served with a Notice of Entry 
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of Order for the examination of Debtor. Defendant Sharda failed to attended the Court Ordered 

Judgment Debtor's Examination scheduled for June 27, 2017. An Order to Show Cause was 

issued for July 20, 2017. 

7. On July 20, 2017, the Debtor personally appeared together with his counsel at the 

hearing on the pending motions. The Court ordered Defendant Sharda to appear at the Judgment 

Debtor's Examination. 

JUDGMENT DEBTOR EXAMINATION OF DEFENDANT SHARDA 

8. On July 29, 2017, Defendant Sharda and his attorney, Brian Nadaffi, Esq. 

appeared for the Judgment Debtor Examination at 10:00 a.m. at the offices of Mazur & Brooks, 

A PLC. During Defendant Sharda's testimony, he admitted to several acts that would subject 

him to civil liability and outlined the locations of various assets that were secreted in foreign 

countries and in a convuluted and complex structure made up of domestic corporations, non-

profit companies, foreign corporations and other entities based upon planning from his attorneys 

and accountants. Each of which would place his assets outside the reach of his creditors and the 

courts. During his testimony, he admitted that: 

a. He owned several foreign entities that were domiciled in the Country of 

Nevis. 

b. That he had business entities that he failed to file annual U.S. Corporate Tax 

Returns as required by law. 

c. That he controls funds held in various investment accounts at ############ 

in excess of $500,000 that would be sufficient to cover payment of the 

Judgment. 

d. Sharda, as the Court appointed Administrator of his father's probate estate, 

admitted that he failed to include all of the assets as he was required to do 

pursuant to his duties. 

e. That Sharda received assets from his father, without receiving consideration, 

prior to his father filing for U.S. Bankruptcy protection. 

f. That Sharda is the Chairman and President of Cancer Care Foundation, Inc., 

a non-profit corporation. In that position, he diverted funds of the non-profit 

for his own personal benefit by making loans in the amount of $300,000 in 

principal to Shafik Hirji and Boulevard Furniture, Inc. in 2016. 
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g. That Defendant Sharda did not suffer any economic damages in pending 

litigation involving his loss of hospital privileges at Sunrise Hospital, 

basically evicerating any claims that he had filed against Sunrise Hospital. 

9. In light of the admissions made during the examination, the parties went off the 

record at 1:13 p.m. for a break. During the break we immediately began to discuss settlement 

and repayment of the Judgment in full. During the settlement discussions, Defendant Sharda was 

represented by counsel the entire time. 

10. At no time did Steven Barket threaten Sharda, harass Defendant Sharda or apply 

any pressure whatsoever to Defendant Sharda. Sharda never stated that he was ever threatened 

or under duress. Sharda's counsel, Brial Nadaffi, Esq. never mentioned that Sharda was ever 

threatened or under any type of duress or pressure. The parties were able to reach a mutally 

agreeable agreement. Counsel for Defendant Sharada and myself jointly prepared the 

Confidential Settlement Agreement which was signed by the parties in the presence of Brian 

Nadaffi, Esq. and myself. Neither Sharda or his attorney vocalized any concerns during the 

discussions leading up to the signing of the Settlement Agreement, during the signing nor after 

the signing of the Confidential Settlement Agreement. 

11. After the debtor's examination, Defendant appeared in court with his counsel on 

many occasions. Not once did he claim that he had suffered any duress or threats as he has 

alleged in his Opposition. 

12. On October 31, 2017, Defendant filed a Motion to Set Aside Default Judgment 

(the "Motion"). He did not raise any claims of duress or threats. Defendant Sharda filed an 

Affidavit in Support on which was signed on September 5, 2017. In his Affidavit, Defendant 

Sharda did not once mentions any harassment, duress or threats. 

13. On November 21, 2017, a hearing was held on the Motion in front of the Hon. 

Timothy Williams. No claims were made of duress or threats at the hearing. Defendant's 

counsel failed to serve Mazur & Brooks with the Motion. As such the hearing was continued 

until January 9, 2018. 

14. On December 15, 2017, Judgment Creditor filed its Opposition to the Motion. 

15. On December 29, 2017, Defendant filed a Reply. In the Reply, Defendant Sharda 

submitted a second Affidavit in Support of the Motion. In the Affidavit, Sharda admits to 

attending his debtor's examination. Defendant states that "during my Debtor's Examination, that 

took place on July 29, 2017, I made (sic) aware of the possibility that I may not have actually 
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received the underlying Summons and Complaint." (Sharda Affidavit, Page 2, Paragraph 9). No 

other statements or declarations regarding duress, threats, settlement or harassment were made. 

16. On January 9, 2018, the continued hearing was held and no claims were made of 

duress or threats. The hearing was continued until January 16, 2018. 

17. On January 16, 2018, the hearing was held and both Defendant Sharda and his 

attorney, Brian Nadaffi, Esq. were present. Neither raised any claims or harassment, duress or 

any threats whatsoever. At this hearing, the Defendant's Motion to Set Aside the Default 

Judgment was denied. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the foregoing 

is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Executed on December 11, 2018 in Las Vegas, Nevada. 
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MICHAEL D. , ESQ. 
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Settlement Agreement dated July 29, 2017 

EXHIBIT 4 

EXHIBIT 4 
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EXHIBIT 5 

EXHIBIT 5  
August 1, 2018 Letter from Brandon McDonald, 

Esq. to Bryan Naddafi (without enclosures)
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EXHIBIT 6 

EXHIBIT 6 
Opposition to Motion to Enforce Settlement 

Agreement and for an Award of Attorney's Fees 
and Costs

190

JA000357



Case Number: A-17-756274-C

Electronically Filed
11/2/2018 12:35 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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THE BARNABI LAW FIRM, PLLC 
CHARLES (“CJ”) E. BARNABI JR., ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 14477 
375 E. Warm Springs Road, Ste. 104 
Las Vegas, NV 89119 
Email: cj@barnabilaw.com  
Telephone: (702) 475-8903 
Facsimile: (702) 966-3718 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
    

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 

STEVEN BARKET, an individual; and G65 

VENTURES, LLC., a Nevada Limited Liability 

Company, 

 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

 

SHAFIK HIRJI, an individual; SHAFIK 

BROWN, an individual; and NAVNEET 

SHARDA, an individual; FURNITURE 

BOUTIQUE, LLC., A Nevada Limited Liability 

Company, and DOES 1-X, inclusive and ROE 

CORPORATIONS XI through XX, 

 

Defendants. 

______________________________________ 

 

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS             

Case No.:  A-17-756274-C  
Dept. No.:  IV 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hearing Date:  January 17, 2019 
 

 
TRANSCRIPT FOR THE JANUARY 17, 2019 HEARING ON THE MOTION TO 

ENFORCE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Parties Present: 

Judge J. Charles Thompson, Charles Barnabi for Plaintiffs, Harold Gerwerter for Dr. Sharda, and 

Teletha Zupan for Shafik Hirji, Shafik Brown and Furniture Boutique. 

 Mr. Barnabi:   Good morning your Honor, Charles Barnabi for Plaintiffs. 

Mr. Gerwerter: Good morning your Honor, Harold Gerwerter for Dr. Sharda. 
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Ms. Zupan: Good morning your Honor, Teletha Zupan for Shafik Hirji, Shafik Brown 

and Furniture Boutique. 

Judge Thompson:  Alright this is a Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement. 

Mr. Barnabi:  Yes your Honor, I’ll just keep it brief, provide a brief overview. Point in the 

matter was filed on June 1, 2017. After that time in an unrelated matter that 

involved the parties that are most relevant to this issue. There was a 

judgment debtor exam of Dr. Sharda that was conducted on July 29, 2017. 

Around midway through the judgment debtor exam the parties decided they 

were going to enter into a settlement agreement. Like I said, this matter was 

pending at that time and there was verbiage in that settlement agreement 

that basically said Dr. Sharda was going to be dismissed from the matter. 

So, there were attempts to extricate Dr. Sharda from the Complaint and at 

this time the counterclaim had not been filed.  The counterclaim by Dr. 

Sharda was subsequently filed by Dr. Sharda on August 11, 2017.  So prior 

counsel was attempting to get the parties extricated based on what the 

understanding of the language of the settlement agreement was. Then there 

were allegations on performance when in fact the parties are already entered 

into a binding agreement.  Prior counsel for Dr. Sharda decided or informed 

prior counsel for Plaintiffs that he was not going to abide by the terms of 

the settlement agreement. So that’s mainly why we are here today. There’s 

allegations of duress and lack of enforceability… 

Judge  Thompson:  He claims that he signed it under duress that he was threatened he was gonna 

get killed. 

Mr. Barnabi:  Right, if you look at the affidavit of Michael Mazur which is the counsel 
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that was conducting the judgment debtor exam for the Plaintiff in that 

matter, its pretty clear cut that they went for several hours at the judgment 

debtor exam then through counsels of both parties they entered into the 

settlement agreement.  There were several hearings, as mentioned by Mr. 

Mazur, that this allegation of duress or foul play was never brought into the 

viewpoint of that courtroom.  This is only a claim that has been made 

following a Motion to Enforce a Settlement Agreement that the parties have 

already entered into, which is binding. Those allegations, irrespective your 

Honor, are, would be barred by the pearl evidence rule and because it 

directly contradicts the terms of the settlement agreement, but further, in 

addition to the claims, like I mentioned…. 

Judge Thompson:  If he signed it under duress he could testify to that couldn’t he? 

Mr. Barnabi:  I believe he could testify to that but it still would be barred, I believe, by the 

pearl evidence rule your Honor… 

Judge Thompson:  My problem is I kind of have an issue of fact here… well… 

Mr. Barnabi:  Well, I also submit your honor that in the counterclaim there is no allegation 

or claim of distress or claim of a rescission to bar the terms of the settlement 

agreement. The only cause of action that was mentioned in that 

counterclaim was a breach of contract brought by both Dr. Sharda and … 

Judge Thompson:  Well it only came up when you moved to enforce the settlement. 

Mr. Barnabi:   I’m sorry? 

Judge Thompson:  The claim of duress only came up when you moved to enforce the settlement 

right? 

Mr. Barnabi:   That’s, yes around a year and a half after the fact. 
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Judge Thompson:  Right. 

Mr. Barnabi:  Your Honor, so, its, I believe if there is substance it would have been 

brought forward in the counterclaim because the parties were obviously 

aware that the settlement agreement had been executed at that time, as of 

July 29 of 2017. So I believe it should be enforced as requested and 

attorney’s fees granted as well and I’ll save (inaudible) for the reply. 

Judge Thompson:  Counsel. 

Mr. Gerwerter:  Your Honor we have an amazing motion here. Half of its just (inaudible) 

for reasons that make no sense whatsoever they bring in new facts, new 

arguments in the Reply for the first time. We all know that’s not permissible. 

If its not in the motion you can’t raise it in the reply but they do it to sit there 

and attack me. Number two we do have a major issue of fact here and that’s 

duress and it was brought during the time. The man was threatened with his 

life “sign this or else” and the, and his client made numerous comments to 

my client outside the presence of others.  That’s an issue of fact that must 

be tried your Honor, we must have an evidentiary hearing (inaudible)… 

Judge Thompson: I’ve got to hold an evidentiary hearing. This isn’t something I want to do 

but I’m going to. 

Mr. Gerwerter: And I want, I need to do some discovery beforehand. Let me do discovery. 

I I was (inaudible)… 

Judge Thompson:  You don’t need discovery. 

Mr. Gerwerter:  Okay. 

Judge Thompson: We’ll just hold an evidentiary hearing. I had written a day when I have 

nothing else on the calendar on Friday February 15th 9 o’clock right here. 
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Mr. Gerwerter:  That’ fine your Honor. 

Judge Thompson:  You’ll be here? It’s your request, you have the burden. 

Mr. Gerweter:   Right. 

Judge Thompson:  Alright, I’ll see you then. 

Mr. Gerwerter:  Your Honor may I ask for attorney’s fees? 

Judge Thompson: No No! 

Mr. Gerwerter:  Well I have an issue here. What issue is their reply as relates to… 

Judge Thompson:  No attorney’s fees. 

Mr. Gewerter:   What’s that? 

Judge Thompson:  No attorney’s fees. 

Mr. Gewerter:   but as it relates to… 

Judge Thompson:  You be here on the 15th with your client and we’ll here you. 

Mr. Gewerter:   Alright, thank you your Honor. 

Judge Thompson:  And if there’s any opposition you better bring it. 

Mr. Barnabi:   Alright your Honor. 

Barnabi & Gewerter: Thank you. 
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EXHIBIT 8 
Letter dated January 29, 2020 from CJ Barnabi, Esq. 
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CJ Barnabi, Esq.  |  Attorney & Counselor 
375 East Warm Springs Rd., Ste. 104, Las Vegas, NV 89119 

Office: 702.475.89003     Fax: 702.966.3718     Email: CJ@BarnabiLaw.com     Website: BarnabiLaw.com 

 
 

January 29, 2020 
 

Via Email to harold@gewerterlaw.com 
Harold Gewerter, Esq. 
Law Offices of Harold P. Gewerter Esq., LTD. 
1212 S. Casino Center Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89104 
 

Re:  Gordon Silver v. Navneet Sharda 
Examination of Judgment Debtor / Order to Show Cause Why Judgment Debtor 
Should Not Be Held in Contempt and Bench Warrant Issued 

Case No.:   A-15-712697-C 
 
Mr. Gewerter: 

 In regards to your prior correspondences of January 23, 2020 and my willingness to call you to 

discuss the matter (on a day when I could have easily elected to address other pending and immediate 

issues) – I won’t tolerate your conduct.  If you want to tell someone that they need to “shut up”, they 

don’t “understand English”, are “playing dumb” and initiate the conversation by stating “Are you playing 

games with me!”, you need to find a different audience.  While I attempted to understand your position 

while you were yelling at me, you would not answer any of my questions with any response except to the 

tell me “I don’t understand English” and other inappropriate outbursts.  Thus, the conversation was ended 

in an “abrupt” manner as you mentioned. 

 In regard to your claims that your Client has satisfied the underlying judgment, I disagree.  As 

Sharda failed to fulfill all the terms outlined in Settlement Agreement, which you previously attached, 

there was and is no right to a satisfaction of judgment.  In other words, only after complete compliance 

with the Settlement Agreement was a satisfaction of judgment to issue.  Settlement Agreement, p. 1:25-

28.  Under the Settlement Agreement Sharda is required to pay additional sums for any collection efforts, 

which have also not been paid.  Id. at p. 2:20-22.  Mr. Mazur is owed, in regard to that point, $80,000, plus 

the fees incurred for defending Sharda’s attempt to vacate the judgment in this case, following the 

Settlement Agreement in October 2017 – December 2017.  My office will also likely be owed additional 

fees and costs for having to enforce the terms of the Settlement Agreement, which will likely be 

approximately $20,000-$30,000.  The precise amount will be determined by the Court at a later date. 
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CJ Barnabi, Esq.  |  Attorney & Counselor 
375 East Warm Springs Rd., Ste. 104, Las Vegas, NV 89119 

Office: 702.475.89003     Fax: 702.966.3718     Email: CJ@BarnabiLaw.com     Website: BarnabiLaw.com 

However, more central to your correspondences, since your Client has failed to provide the 

documents which have been Ordered to be provided on or before January 20, 2020 – I will be filing an 

order to show cause why Sharda should not be held in contempt and a bench warrant issued.  The 

judgment debtor examination will be continued to a date following the court’s determination of sanctions. 

If your Client intends to fulfill the terms of the Settlement Agreement you may advise me in 

writing.  In the meantime, my Client is permitted to satisfy the judgment in any lawful manner permitted. 

THE BARNABI LAW FIRM, PLLC 

Charles (“CJ”) E. Barnabi, Esq. 
cc: Client 
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